

# ANNUAL MEETING – October 19, 2016 FloridaWest Economic Development Alliance – Board of Director's Meeting Greater Pensacola Chamber I Boardroom I 117 W Garden Street

1.	Call to	Order	Jim Waite
2.	Meetir	ng publicly noticed on September 27.	Jim Waite
3.	Public	Comment	Jim Waite
4.	Action	Items	Jim Waite
	a.	Approve September 27 Meeting Minutes	Jim Waite
	b.	Approve FloridaWest FY 16-17 Budget	Scott Luth
	c.	Approve Redlined By-Laws	Margaret Stopp
	d.	Elect FY 16-17 Officers	Jim Waite
		i. President: Jim Waite Nominated	
		" Non Breathail Breat Back Askala Alamata Maria	

ii. Vice President: Donnie McMahon Nominated

iii. Secretary: Tim Haag Nominated

iv. Treasurer: No nomination.

e. Authorize signing City Miscellaneous Agreement for FY 2017 Rebecca Ferguson

5. Discussion Items:

a. Budget Workshop Review
b. Cyber Security Strategic Plan
c. FY 16-17 Schedule
d. Board Forum

6. Adjourn

Scott Luth
Rebecca Ferguson
Libby Brown
Jim Waite

**FY 16-17 Schedule:** Meetings will take place on the **third Tuesday of every other month starting in November** unless directed by the President to call special meetings and / or cancel meetings. Place to be determined.

- November 29 @ 2:00
- January 31 @ 2:00
- March 28 @ 2:00
- May 30 @ 2:00
- July 25 @ 2:00
- September 26 @ 2:00



# MINUTES – September 27, 2016 FloridaWest Economic Development Alliance – Board of Director's Meeting Greater Pensacola Chamber, 117 W Garden Street – Boardroom

Members Present: Vice President Gary Sammons, Secretary Tim Haag, Donnie McMahon, Lewis Bear, Jr., and Rebecca Ferguson

Staff Present: Scott Luth, Sena Maddison, Kelly Reeser, and Libby Brown

Others Present: Todd Thomson, Chris Walker, Autumn Brinson, and Michelle Taylor.

- 1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by Vice President Gary Sammons at 1:58 pm.
- 2. Public Notice: This meeting was publicly noticed on
- 3. Public Comment: Vice President Sammons asked the room if there was any public comment. Todd Thomson, Vice President of Public Affairs for the Greater Pensacola Chamber, addressed the board to brief them about worker's compensation rates due to rise by an average of 14.5% starting December 1 of this year. The Greater Pensacola Chamber has partnered with a number of business organizations and other local chambers to advocate for a legislative solution that will stabilize rates and curb any additional increases. Other organizations that have joined this effort include: Northwest Florida Homebuilders Assn, Northwest Florida Manufacturers Assn, NAIOP, the Direct Marketers Organization (hoteliers) and the Perdido Key, Pensacola Beach and Gulf Breeze Chambers of Commerce. The earliest a legislative fix could be implemented is during the 2017 legislative session.

#### 4. Action Items

a. **Approve August 10 Meeting Minutes:** Gary Sammons asked if there were any additions or corrections to the August 10, 2016 meeting minutes.

b. Approve August Financials Chris Walker
i. CIE Rent Update Scott Luth
ii. FY 16-17 Budget Update Scott Luth

#### 5. Board of Director's Officer Nominations

Gary Sammons

**Gary Sammons** 

- a. President
- b. Vice President
- c. Secretary
- d. Treasurer

#### 6. Discussion Items

a. By-Laws Review
 b. Private Sector Fundraising
 c. Presentation: Economic & Workforce Development
 d. Economic Development Updates

 i. Program of Work

 e. Board Forum
 Gary Sammons
 Gary Sammons

7. Adjourn Gary Sammons



ANNUAL MEETING SET FOR OCTOBER 19, 2016 at 12 noon at the Greater Pensacola Chamber in the Boardroom.

# FloridaWest EDA Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual October 2015 through September 2016

5410 · Maint & Repair- Computers	5310 · Insur-D&O/Liab/Umbrella/EPLI	5200 · Dues & Subscriptions	5190 · Depreciation Expense	Total 5140 · Business Travel	5140 · Business Travel - Other	5140a · International	5140 · Business Travel	5120 · Auto Travel	5105 · Legal Fees	Total 5100 · Audit Expense	5100 · Audit Expense	5066 · Database/Research	Total 5060 · Marketing, Adv & Promo/Investor	5060 · Marketing, Adv & Promo/Investor - Other	5060a · Marketing - Website	5060b · Business Development	5060 · Marketing, Adv & Promo/Investor	5005 · Bank & Credit Card Fees	5411 · Capital Expenditures - Computer	Expense	Gross Profit	Total Income	4512 · Miscellaneous Income	4511 · Inc 5000 Income	Total 4500 · CIE - Rent	4430 · PEDC	4420 · City Income	4410 · Foundation	4000 · Membership Dues	Income	
22,003.93	2,518.73	10,055.19	785.73	42,233.36	35,039.42	7,193.94		15,199.38	12,093.00	26,394.00		9,765.27	35,258.15	22,137.61	5,940.00	7,180.54		844.38	13,861.64		1,162,846.14	1,162,846.14	2,665.95	0.00	77,656.19	570,000.00	150,000.00	172,524.00	190,000.00		Oct '15 - Sep 16
25,000.00	4,000.00	7,500.00	16,000.00	60,000.00	60,000.00			15,000.00	10,000.00	30,000.00		20,000.00	155,000.00	145,000.00	10,000.00			500.00			1,131,000.00	1,131,000.00	1,000.00	0.00	70,000.00	570,000.00	150,000.00	100,000.00	240,000.00		2015-2016 Budget
-2,996.07	-1,481.27	2,555.19	-15,214.27	-17,766.64	-24,960.58			199.38	2,093.00	-3,606.00		-10,234.73	-119,741.85	-122,862.39	-4,060.00			344.38			31,846.14	31,846.14	1,665.95	0.00	7,656.19	0.00	0.00	72,524.00	-50,000.00		\$ Over Budget
25,000.00	4,000.00	10,000.00	16,000.00	60,000.00	45,000.00	15,000.00		15,000.00	15,000.00	30,000.00		20,000.00	150,000.00	125,000.00	10,000.00	15,000.00		1,000.00			1,216,000.00	1,216,000.00	1,000.00	0.00	85,000.00	600,000.00	150,000.00	100,000.00	280,000.00		2016-2017 Budget

1

12:47 PM 09/27/16 Cash Basis

# Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual October 2015 through September 2016 FloridaWest EDA

				The faith of the first of the f
	Oct '15 - Sep 16	2015-2016 Budget	\$ Over Budget	2016-2017 Budget
5440 · Meeting Expense	3,086.66	2,500.00	586.66	3,500.00
5500 · CIE Expenses				
5500-01 · CIE Rent Expense	18,750.00	37,500.00	-18,750.00	19,000.00
5500-11 CIE Renovation				37,500.00
5500-02 · CIE Utility Expense	24,417.06	30,000.00	-5,582.94	18,000.00
5500-03 · CIE Building Expense	17,400.85	7,000.00	10,400.85	13,000.00
5500-04 · CIE Insurance	0.00	200.00	-200.00	200.00
5500-05 · CIE Copier Expense	6,570.57	10,000.00	-3,429.43	5,000.00
5500-06 · CIE Supplies	2,023.54	2,500.00	-476.46	2,500.00
5500-07 · CIE Programming	3,386.74	10,000.00	-6,613.26	10,000.00
5500-08 · CIE Marketing	14,110.70	15,000.00	-889.30	23,000.00
5500-09 · CIE Dues	695.00	800.00	-105.00	800.00
5500-10 · CIE Miscellaneous Expense	1,067.04	1,000.00	67.04	1,000.00
5500 · CIE Expenses - Other	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Total 5500 · CIE Expenses	88,421.50	114,000.00	-25,578.50	130,000.00
5558 · Education Support/NGLC	0.00	5,000.00	-5,000.00	0.00
5559 · Workforce Marketing	5,547.29	20,000.00	-14,452.71	20,000.00
5600 · Miscellaneous Expense	631.78	1,000.00	-368.22	1,000.00
5610 · Postage	133.22	500.00	-366.78	500.00
5680 · High Growth Companies	870.91	20,000.00	-19,129.09	20,000.00
Total 57000 · Employee Wages & Benefits	549,126.86	579,000.00	-29,873.14	580,000.00
5800 · Supplies	1,082.78	1,000.00	82.78	1,000.00
5915 · Telephone	640.66	2,000.00	-1,359.34	1,000.00
5925 · Cell Phones	4,145.80	7,000.00	-2,854.20	6,000.00
5954 · Copier Expense	1,177.24	2,000.00	-822.76	2,000.00
5980 · Rent Expense	30,481.68	29,000.00	1,481.68	60,000.00
otal Expense	876,359.14	1,126,000.00	-249,640.86	1,171,000.00
•	286,487.00	5,000.00	281,487.00	45,000.00

Net Income

Total Expense

# BYLAWS COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION OF PENSACOLA AND ESCAMBIA COUNTY, INC.

# **ARTICLE I Name and Location**

The name of the corporation is the Community Economic Development Association of Pensacola and Escambia County, Inc. ("CEDA"), and its principal place of business will be in Escambia County, Florida. The office location may be moved from time to time but must remain in Escambia County, Florida.

#### ARTICLE II Purpose

The purpose of CEDA is to promote industry and commerce, enhance the business climate and stimulate economic prosperity, support workforce development, promote community development, and encourage political action. CEDA will strive to accomplish the greatest good for the greatest number of people in Pensacola, Escambia County, and Northwest Florida. CEDA shall observe all local, state and federal laws that apply to non-profit organizations as defined in Section 501(c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code.

#### ARTICLE III Membership

Section 1. Members. An entity or person interested in the development of this region and who desires to preserve and promote the objectives of CEDA may become a voting Member upon an initial annual payment of \$40,000.00 to be determined by the Board of Directors annually before the beginning of each Fiscal Year to CEDA and \$10,000.00 to the Pensacola Area Chamber Foundation, Inc. (the "Foundation"). A Member remains in good standing upon payment of subsequent annual assessments determined by the Board of Directors of CEDA on its behalf and on behalf of the Foundation; provided, however, that any annual payments from governmental entities will be credited to CEDA upon receipt alone, and no payment will be made to the Foundation.

- (1) Applications for membership must be in writing to CEDA.
- (2) Membership must be approved by the Board of Directors.
- (3) Resignations must be in writing to CEDA.
- (4) Each Member in good standing is entitled to one vote and qualifies for consideration as a Director. Entities must provide to CEDA the name of the person designated to vote on behalf of the entity. Governmental entities may become Members upon payment of the initial annual payments and subsequent annual assessments. Appointment of persons as the designated Member by the governmental entities will be pursuant to Florida law.

- Section 2. Associate Members. At the discretion of the Board, a category including Associate Members may be established. An entity or person interested in the development of this region and who desires to preserve and promote the objectives of CEDA may become an Associate Member upon an <u>initial</u>-annual payment of \$10,000.00 to be determined by the Board of <u>Directors from time to time</u>, and remains in good standing upon payment of <u>subsequent</u>-annual assessments <u>as</u> determined by the Board of Directors.
  - (1) Applications as an Investor must be in writing to CEDA.
  - (2) Applications must be approved by the Board of Directors.
  - (3) Resignations must be in writing to CEDA.
  - (4) Associate Members are not entitled to elect Directors and cannot become a Director.
  - (5) Associate Members may serve on Committees of CEDA.

Section 3. Non-Voting Members. At the discretion of the Board, a category including Non-Voting Members may be established based upon significant in-kind donations and will remain in good standing for a period of time as determined by the Board. At the discretion of the Board, Non-Voting Members may participate as non-voting Directors.

#### Section 34. Meetings.

- 3.1 Annual Meeting. A meeting of the Members and Investors must be held each year for the election of Directors and for transaction of any other business that may come from the meeting. The time and place of the meeting must be designated by the Board of Directors.
- 3.2 Place of Meeting. The Board of Directors may designate any place within northwest Florida as the place of meeting for any annual meeting. If no designation is made, the place of meeting will be the principal office of the corporation.
- 3.3 Notice of Meeting. Written notice stating the place, day, and hour of the meeting, must be delivered to the Members not less than three days or more than 60 days before the date of the meeting, personally, by electronic transmission, or by U.S. Mail by the Secretary or officer calling the meeting.
- 3.4 Waiver of Notice of Meeting. Attendance of a person at a meeting constitutes a waiver of lack of notice or objection to consideration of a matter at a meeting that is not within the purpose or purposes described in the meeting notice, unless the person objects to considering the matter when presented.
  - 3.5 Quorum. A majority of Members entitled to vote constitutes a quorum.

<u>3.6 Voting for Directors.</u> Directors will be elected at the Annual Meeting by a plurality of the votes cast by the Members present so long as a quorum is present; provided, however, that the Designated Director will be appointed pursuant to Article IV of these Bylaws.

#### ARTICLE IV Board of Directors

The Board of Directors serves as the governing body of CEDA. The affairs of CEDA and the control and disposition of its properties and funds are vested in the Board, either directly or through its officers, and pursuant to applicable federal and Florida law.

- <u>Section 1. Number.</u> The Board of Directors must consist of no fewer than seven (7) and no more than twenty-one (21) persons.
- 1.1 Determination of Number of Directors. The number of Directors may be increased or decreased to no fewer than seven (7) annually prior to the Annual Meeting by action of the Board <u>pursuant to the requirements of Article III above</u>, but no decrease in the number of Directors can have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent Director.
- 1.2 Director Qualification. All Directors must be Members or designees of Members, or a Non-Voting Member, except for the Designated Director who is appointed pursuant to subsection 1.2.1 below.
- 1.2.1 <u>Designated Director</u>. The Designated Director will be appointed by the initial-Board at the first meeting following the Annual Meeting after applications are solicited, and subsequently at the first meeting of the Board after the Annual Meeting. The Designated Director must be from a pool of applicants solicited at least 30 days before the Annual Meeting. In the solicitation for applications, the criteria for consideration must include the then-current Directors and how they reflect the socio-demographic composition of Escambia County.
- 1.2.2 <u>Governmental Entity Director</u>. Governmental entities that contribute more than \$150,000 annually either through the Pensacola-Escambia County Promotion and Development Commission (the "PEDC") or directly are entitled to appoint a designee as a Director at the time of the Annual Meeting.
- 1.3 Term of Office. Each Director will hold office until a successor has been elected and no longer qualified, qualified and appointed, or until an earlier resignation, removal from office, or death.
- Section 2. Duties. Directors must discharge their duties in good faith, with the care an ordinary person would exercise under similar circumstances, and in the manner the Director thinks is in the best interests of the corporation. In discharging their duties, Directors are entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports, or statements, including without limitation, financial statements and other financial data, prepared or presented by (i) officers or employees of the corporation whom the Director reasonably believes is reliable and competent in the matters presented; (ii) legal counsel, public accountants, or other persons about matters the Director reasonably believes

are within the person's professional or expert competence; or (iii) a Board committee on which the Directors does not serve, designated by the Articles or these Bylaws, about matters within the committee's authority, which the Director reasonably believes merits confidence.

<u>Section 3. Regular Meetings.</u> An annual Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors must be held with notice immediately after, and at the same place as, the Annual Meeting. Regular Meetings must be held no less than quarterly at the principal office of the corporation, or at such other time and place as the Board may determine by resolution.

<u>Section 4. Special Meetings.</u> Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President of the Board or any two Directors. The person calling the meeting must designate the day and time. The place must be the principal office of the corporation or in reasonable proximity to the principal office.

<u>Section 5. Notice of Meetings.</u> Written notice stating the place, day, and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose for which the meeting is called, must be delivered to the Directors not less than three days or more than 30 days before the date of the meeting, personally, by electronic transmission, or by U.S. Mail by the Secretary or officer calling the meeting.

<u>Section 6. Waiver of Notice of Meetings.</u> Whenever notice is required to be given to a Director, a waiver in writing signed by the Director and delivered to the corporation for inclusion in the minutes is equivalent to the giving of the notice. Attendance of a person at a meeting constitutes a waiver of lack of notice or objection to consideration of a matter at a meeting that is not within the purpose or purposes described in the meeting notice, unless the person objects to considering the matter when presented.

<u>Section 7. Quorum.</u> A majority of Directors entitled to vote constitutes a quorum at any meeting of the Board, unless applicable law, the Articles, or these Bylaws require the vote of a greater number of Directors.

<u>Section 8. Effect of Action.</u> The act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present when the vote is taken is the act of the Board.

<u>Section 9. Meeting by Conference Call or Similar Electronic Means.</u> Directors may participate in a meeting of the Board by means of a conference call or similar communications equipment if all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time. Participation by these means constitutes presence in person at a meeting.

<u>Section 10.</u> Resignation. Any Director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the corporation, the Board, or the President. The resignation of the Director will take effect when the notice is delivered unless the notice specifies a later effective date, in which event the Board may fill the pending vacancy before the effective date if it provides the successor does not take office until the effective date.

<u>Section 11. Vacancies.</u> Any vacancy may be filled <u>pursuant to Article III above; provided, however, that the annual assessment will not be pro-rated by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining Directors although less than a quorum of the Board.</u>

<u>Section 12. Removal.</u> A Director may be removed at any time by a three-fourths majority vote of all Directors then serving.

<u>Section 13. Compensation.</u> Directors shall not receive any compensation for their service as Directors, but the Board may, by resolution, authorize reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. Such authorization may prescribe the procedure for approval and payment of the expenses by designated officers of the corporation. This provision does not preclude a Director from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation for such services.

<u>Section 14. Conflicts of Interest.</u> No contract or other transaction between the corporation and one or more of its Directors, or any other corporation, firm, association, or entity in which one or more of the Directors or Officers are financially interested, is void or voidable because of the relationship or interest, because the Director or Directors are present at the meeting of the Board, or Board committee, that authorizes, approves, or ratifies the subject contract or transaction, or because the votes of the Directors are counted for that purpose, provide that:

- (1) the fact of the relationship or interest is disclosed to or is otherwise known by the board, or Board committee, that authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction by a vote or consent sufficient for that purpose without counting the votes or consents of the interested Directors:
- (2) the fact of the relationship or interest is disclosed to or is otherwise known by the Members entitle to vote, and the Member authorize, approve, or ratify the contract or transaction by vote;
- (3) the contract or transaction is fair and reasonable for the corporation at the time it is authorized by the Board, a Board committee, or the Members.

A quorum is present if a majority of Directors who do not have an interest in the transaction vote to authorize, approve, or ratify it.

### **ARTICLE V Committees and Councils**

<u>Section 1. Standing Committees.</u> Standing Committees include the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, and the Nominating Committee with the duties and responsibilities as indicated by these Bylaws. The Board may override any decision made by a Standing Committee by a majority of votes at a duly noticed meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present, unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws.

- <u>1.1 Executive Committee.</u> The Executive Committee consists of the Officers of the corporation.
- 1.1.1 Meetings are at the call of the corporation President. A quorum is a majority of the members of the Committee. No revision or alteration by the Board of Directors of action taken at the Executive Committee will affect the rights of third parties.
- 1.1.2 The Executive Committee may exercise all powers and authority of the Board of Directors when the Board is not in session, including taking such action from time to time as may be required for the expeditious operation of the corporation. However, the Executive Committee has no authority to alter, amend, or repeal the corporation Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws.
- 1.1.3 The powers and authority of the Executive committee are subject to the full Board of Directors being unable to meet in a timely manner to conduct business of the corporation. The powers and authority granted to the Executive Committee is further subject to such restrictions or limitations as the Board of Directors may from time to time specify by resolution.
- 1.1.4 All actions of the Executive Committee must be reported in writing to the Directors individually within thirty days after the action is taken, or at a meeting of the Board of Directors if a meeting is held within thirty days of the action. Minutes of the Executive Committee must be included as an information item in the Executive Committee report at the next occurring regular meeting of the Board of Directors.
- 1.1.5 The Board of Directors may override or negate any Executive Committee action by a majority vote of the Directors present at a duly noticed meeting of the Board of Directors, subject to subsection 1.1.1 of this Article.
- 1.2 Finance Committee. The Finance Committee will be appointed by the President and will consist of no fewer than three Directors with the Treasurer acting as Chair of the Committee. The committee will prepare an annual corporation budget for review and approval by the Board of Directors. The Committee will conduct a process for the selection of the independent auditor for recommendation to the Board of Directors as needed. If an audit is conducted, upon completion, the Committee shall recommend the audited financial statement for approval by the Board of Directors. The Committee must review no less than every five years the spending policies and make recommendations to the Board in this regard.
- 1.3 Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee will consist of no fewer than three, or more than five, Directors with the corporation President acting as its Chair and appointing the Committee members. Recommendations for potential nominees for Officers of the corporation may be submitted to the Nominating Committee no later than thirty days prior to the Annual Meeting in those years terms of the Directors are expiring. The Nominating Committee will meet and nominate Directors Officers and present its slate of Directors Officers to the Members with voting privileges at the Annual Meeting at which time these Members will vote on the slate of candidates.

<u>Section 2. Ad hoc Committees.</u> Ad hoc committees may be created by the President to perform a specific task that is not within the purview of a Standing Committee. Ad hoc committees may investigate or research a matter or carry out an action adopted by the Board. The composition and duties of ad hoc committee shall be determined by the President, who will report to the Board on the committee's work. Ad hoc committee members, other than a chair, may be appointed from the Members and Investors, as well as the Board of Directors. Ad hoc committees may be comprised of as few as one Director working with corporation staff.

#### ARTICLE VI Officers

- <u>Section 1. Officers of the Corporation.</u> The Officers of the corporation are President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. <u>The positions of Secretary and Treasurer may be combined.</u>
- <u>Section 2. Election.</u> The Officers of the corporation must be elected annually by the Directors at the Board's meeting following the Annual Meeting, to serve until a successor is duly elected and qualified.
- <u>Section 3. Removal.</u> Any Officer of the corporation may be removed at any time by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of the corporation will be served by doing so.
- <u>Section 4. Resignation.</u> Any <u>Director Officer</u> may resign at any time by giving written notice to the corporation, the Board, or the President. The resignation of the Officer will take effect when the notice is delivered unless the notice specifies a later effective date, in which event the Board may fill the pending vacancy before the effective date if it provides the successor does not take office until the effective date.
- <u>Section 5. Vacancies.</u> Any vacancy may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors.
- <u>Section 6. Duties.</u> The duties of the Officers of the corporation are as usually appertain to such officers of corporations generally.
- 1.1 President. The President will preside at all meetings of the Members, the Board, and all Board committees on which the President may serve, except as otherwise authorized by these Bylaws or by resolution of the Board. In addition, the President will possess and may exercise the power and authority, and perform those duties, as may from time to time be assigned to the President by the Board and that are incident to the offices of president.
- 1.2 Vice President. The Vice President possesses and may exercise the power and authority, and perform the duties, as may from time to time be assigned by the Board. The Vice President will perform the duties of the President in the absence or incapacity of the President; and in case of the resignation or death of the President, the Vice President will perform such duties as are imposed on the President until such time as the Board elects a new President.

- 1.3 Secretary. The Secretary will prepare the Minutes for meetings of the Board and the Members; provide Notices consistent with these Bylaws or as may be required by law; be custodian of the corporate records; and exercise the power and authority, and perform the duties, as may from time to time be assigned by the Board and that are incident to the office of secretary.
- 1.4 Treasurer. The Treasurer must make periodic examination of the financial position of the corporation, coordinate preparation of the annual budget, and chair the Finance Committee. The Treasurer must review all disbursements made by the corporation and assist the Executive Director in preparation of financial reports to the Board of Directors for each regular meeting of the Board, or as may be required by the Board or Executive Committee, and perform the duties, as may from time to time be assigned by the Board and that are incident to the office of treasurer.

<u>Section 7. Bond.</u> Each Officer and the Executive Director, if authorized to collect, hold, or disburse funds of the corporation must be bonded for the faithful discharge of duties, the adequacy of which will be determined by the Executive Committee. The corporation will pay for the bonds.

<u>Section 8. Insurance.</u> The corporation must maintain Directors and Officers liability insurance on behalf of the Board.

# **ARTICLE VII Chief Executive Officer**

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") is not a member of the Board of Directors and is responsible to the Members and the Board, subject to the policies and directives of the corporation. The immediate supervisor of the CEO is the President of the corporation. The CEO exercises control over the administration of the corporation and the execution of the corporation's policies. The CEO must attend all meetings of the Board and the membership and assist the Secretary and Treasurer in their duties, including maintain custody of corporate documents and keeping an account of all transactions and financial condition of the corporation. The CEO is authorized to (i) appoint, remove, discipline, and supervise the corporation's personnel; (ii) authorize and certify payrolls, requisitions, and other documents relating to the financial affairs of the corporation; and (iii) perform such other duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board of Directors. The compensation of the CEO will be determined by the Board. The Board may, by resolution, remove the CEO and terminate employment at any time, with or without cause.

# **ARTICLE VIII Contracts and Funds**

<u>Section 1. Authorization.</u> The Board of Directors may authorize any Officer to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of an on behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of

the corporation must be signed by such officers of the corporation an in such manner as will be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors from time to time.

<u>Section 2. Funds.</u> All funds of the corporation not otherwise employed must be deposited to the credit of the corporation in such banks or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select or as may be designated by any Officer of the corporation to whom such power may be delegated by the Board of Directors.

<u>Section 3.</u> Acceptance of Gifts and Grants. The Board of Directors or any Officer of the corporation to whom such authority may be delegated by the Board may accept on behalf of the corporation any contribution, gift, bequest, device, or grant for general purposes or for any special purpose that may be designated. The Board is authorized to receive contributions from any governmental entity or private sources.

<u>Section 4. Audits.</u> Annually, or as may otherwise be required by the Board, these Bylaws, or by contract for funding, the accounts of the corporation will be audited by a certified public accountant, whose report must be submitted to the Finance Committee and to each member of the Board.

#### ARTICLE IX Records and Fiscal Year

<u>Section 1. Records.</u> The corporation must keep complete records of accounts and minutes of the proceedings of its Board of Directors and committees, and maintain all financial records in the principal office of the corporation.

<u>Section 2. Fiscal Year.</u> The fiscal year of the corporation begins October 1, or set by the Board of Directors by resolution from time to time as may be required.

# **ARTICLE X Amendments**

The Board may amend or repeal these Bylaws and adopt new Bylaws at any regular meeting or special meeting called for that purpose, provided that notice of the proposed amendment or repeal is given to each Director at least five days prior to the meeting date at which these Bylaws are to be amended or repealed.

# **ARTICLE XI Dissolution**

The corporation must use its funds only to accomplish the mission and corporate objectives, and no part of these funds shall inure, or be distributed to, any Director, Member, or other person. Upon dissolution of the corporation, any funds remaining must be distributed to one or more regularly organized and qualified organization as defined in IRC 501(c)(6) to be selected by the Board of Directors.

# **ARTICLE XII General Laws**

Any matters not covered in these Bylaws or in the Articles of Incorporation will be governed by the laws of the State of Florida, including without limitation, Public Records and Sunshine Laws as they may apply.

Jerry Maygarden	, Secretary	
Amended the	day of	, 2016

#### FLWest Meeting Schedules FY 16-17

FloridaWest FY 16-17 – Last Tuesday of every other month (starting in NOV) at 2:00 PM

- October 19 @ 12:00 PM (Chamber Boardroom)
- November 29 @ 2:00
- January 31 @ 2:00
- March 28 @ 2:00
- May 30 @ 2:00
- July 25 @ 2:00
- September 26 @ 2:00